
Planning Board 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

October 10, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of August 8, 2022, Meeting Minutes  

3. City Council Actions Update 

4. Request to rezone two properties totaling +/- 87.73 acres located at 1818 Saddle Club Rd 
(PINs 9826425313 and 9826511986) from R-10 and R-20 to R-12 (CD) to allow for a 
residential cluster development of 207 single-family homes by Lebanon Road 3, LLC 

5. New Business 

6. Adjournment 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

August 8, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

The Planning Board meeting was held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building located at 106 E. 
Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302 and livestreamed via YouTube. The video can be accessed 
through the following link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LeKdqvXUgdM 
 
Members Present:  
Edward Tulauskas, Chair 
Judy Taylor, Vice Chair 
Jason VanBuren 
Gale Pettiford 
Susan Semonite 

William Chapman 
Kurt Pearson 
Keith Hoover 
Larry Teague  

 
City Staff Present:   
Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director 
Audrey Vogel, Planner 

Kirk Montgomery, IT Director 

 
1. Call to Order 

At 6:30 p.m. Chairman Tulauskas called the meeting to order. 
 
2. Approval of July 18, 2022, Meeting Minutes 

Judy Taylor made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. Susan Semonite seconded the motion 
which passed unanimously. 

 
3. City Council Actions Update 

Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director, provided an update on the City Council’s recent 
action at the August City Council meeting 
 

4. Request to establish LM (CD) zoning on the +/- 73.978-acre parcel (identified by Parcel 
Identification Number 9844452283) located on West Ten Road outside of the Mebane Extra-
Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) in Orange County to allow for a light-industrial development including 
two warehouse buildings by Williams Development Group. 
 
Williams Development Group is requesting to establish LM (CD) zoning on the +/- 73.978-acre parcel 
(identified by Parcel Identification Number 9844452283) located on West Ten Road outside of the 
Mebane Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) in Orange County to allow for a light-industrial 
development including two warehouse buildings. Proposed onsite amenities are detailed in the 
meeting agenda packet available here. Annexation will be required before the City Council can hold 
a public hearing to take zoning action. The applicant has the property under contract to purchase, 
contingent upon approval of the conditional rezoning. The Planning staff has reviewed the request 
for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and consistency with the City’s adopted plans 
and recommends approval. The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan and 
the applicant has revised the plan to reflect the comments 

Audrey Vogel provided an overview and PowerPoint presentation of the request. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LeKdqvXUgdM
https://cityofmebanenc.gov/meetings/planning-board-meeting-august-8-2022/


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

August 8, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

 
The following individuals attended the meeting to represent the zoning request:  

• Taylor Williams – Williams Development Group, applicant  
• Josh Reinke – Ramey Kemp Associates, traffic consultant 
• Tim Summerville – Stewart, civil engineer  
• Michael Fox –Tuggle Duggins, attorney  

 
Michael Fox introduced the applicant team in attendance and presented the purpose of the zoning 
request. He noted that the proposed Mebane zoning is not different from the existing zoning in 
Orange County and fits in to the Buckhorn Economic Development District. Mr. Fox also discussed 
the neighborhood outreach for the project including a zoom call and various phone with neighbors. 
He cited the primary concerns as traffic, buffers, and stormwater. Mr. Fox also discussed 
conversations with Orange County Schools, noting that the County is going to perform a traffic study 
to manage existing traffic conditions and future growth for the Gravelly Hill Middle School down the 
street.  

 
Taylor Williams provided information about Williams Development group and elaborated on the 
proposed development, site plan, and traffic impact analysis (TIA). 
 
Susan Semonite asked if schools were remote when the TIA was completed in December 2021. It 
was confirmed that students returned to the classroom for the full year in 2021.  
 
Kurt Pearson asked for more information about the buffer required between the two sites. Tim 
Summerville responded that by subdividing the property into two parcels the UDO requires a 20’ 
type c buffer and the applicant has proposed to provide these plantings elsewhere on site to provide 
screening from the outside. 
 
Jason VanBuren asked when Orange County Schools would complete the aforementioned traffic 
study. Michael Fox answered that the timeframe has yet to be determined. 
 
Larry Teague asked if they were able to estimate the time of day for most truck traffic without 
having building tenants determined yet. Taylor Williams responded that it is difficult to speculate, 
but typically warehouses have lower peak trip generation because the shifts tend to operate on a 
24-hour clock. Traffic consultant Josh Reinke added that the trip generation manual used for the TIA 
is based on land use type, and the warehouse use does not tend to overlap with peak traffic.  
 
Judy Taylor asked if a service road has ever been considered to serve these properties along West 
Ten Rd. Josh Reinke responded that this has not been discussed or considered to the best of his 
knowledge. Ms. Taylor asked if any improvements would be necessary at the Mt. Willing 
interchange.  Mr. Reinke answered that per the TIA, the development would not have a significant 
impact on the interchange and per NCDOT’s review it would not need monitoring for signalization.  
 
Susan Semonite questioned if the road needed to be widened to accommodate truck traffic. Josh 
Reinke answered that the road along the property’s frontage would be widened to accommodate 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

August 8, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

the required turn lanes, however it would not be widened anywhere else. 
 
Tom Boney of the Alamance News asked for clarification on the trip generation table presented 
from the TIA. Josh Reinke explained that the ITE Trip Generation manual determines generation 
assumptions/estimates based on studies of sites across the country.  The generation is not based on 
number of employees, it is based on building size. He explained that the weekday AM and PM peaks 
on the screen is the “worst case” traffic in the morning and evening. He added that the ITE manual 
does not do a break down specifically for truck traffic. Truck traffic is typically spread out throughout 
the day as opposed to concentrated during peaks.  
 
Mr. Boney asked if the applicant had an idea of if the company would do speculative or build-to-suit 
type of development. Taylor Williams answered that it was yet to be determined, however they 
would like to identify an occupant prior to vertical construction. 
 
Tom Boney asked about the current and projected projects included in the traffic analysis. Per Josh 
Reinke the following projects were considered in the TIA: 

• Project titanium - completed ABB industrial site in Mebane, northwest of the site  
• Medline – the medical supply distribution facility, west of the site 
• West Ten Industrial and Buckhorn Business Center, Al. Neyer light industrial developments 

west of the site  
• Bowman Road subdivisions – single family residential development in Mebane west of the 

site  
• Efland Industrial – 2021 TIA for industrial space north of the site 

 
Chairman Tulauskas invited the public to speak and ask questions. 
 
Beth Bronson, 1221 Buckhorn Rd, read aloud written comments on behalf of her neighbor Fiona 
Johan , 5016 Johann Ln: 
  

Good evening to the planning board and in person attendees. I am sorry I could not attend this 
meeting but hope that my review of the agenda packet ahead of tonight’s meeting along with 
my questions provide a useful viewpoint from a rural resident. 

I want to start by showing my appreciation for the 100’ buffers automatically put into this site 
plan from Al Neyer. I recognize that this is double the 50’ requirement in the UDO and as many 
of you know something I fought hard for on the 6016 West Ten Property. I will again push that 
the developer and the planning board consider a slightly higher buffer of 150’, at the very 
least on property lines that touch rural residential housing. I can personally attest to the 
disturbance that building in this area brings not only to the people, but the animals. The noise 
pollution alone, every day from 7am to 10pm, is enough to discourage opening your own 
window on a beautiful day instead of running an HVAC system. 

My second concern is the traffic. I see from the traffic impact analysis that there are some 
added lanes that the developer plans to put in at entrances on West Ten and Buckhorn. They 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

August 8, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

seem to meet the minimum required by the TIA. If I were a direct neighbor of this property, I 
would ask whose property those road expansions impact and if this is something that eminent 
domain automatically takes care of or if those property owners get a say about what happens 
to their road front property. 

Another traffic concern for those of us not directly next door to this site is the general increase 
of tractor trailer traffic. It is already happening to me multiple times a week that tractor trailers 
coming out of the truck stop are pulling in front of oncoming traffic causing the need for 
extreme braking. I have spoken to other neighbors and they have experienced the same thing. 
This is an already unsafe situation that I worry will get worse with more tractor trailers on the 
road. 

As I stated with the 6016 West Ten rezoning I am aware that the Buckhorn Business Center 
does lay within the planned Buckhorn Economic Development District. Therefore, I will not 
object to this project outright but I truly hope that any plans that meet approval of the 
planning board take the local traffic into consideration. As stated above tractor trailers 
entering Buckhorn are already a concern and we have not even seen the effects of Medline and 
6016 West Ten tractor trailer traffic. I see the TIA recommend “monitoring” which is 
appreciated but I truly feel it is a bit lackluster if the city’s plans are to continue to encourage 
industrial development in the BEDD. If we also factor in the new housing developments that 
are creeping east on Bowman Rd we are in for a significant increase in traffic at the Buckhorn 
interchange and I hope that we can act a bit more proactively instead of waiting for something 
bad to happen. 

It is truly heartbreaking to see the agricultural land around me turning into an industrial area. I 
ask you as someone who understands the city’s need for growth to continue to consider those 
of us in this area that moved here specifically for the rural feel.  

I will continue to tune in via YouTube and speak up when I am concerned. I appreciate all the 
planning board does and recognize that balancing the needs of developers and local rural 
residents is a tricky one, thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 
Fiona Johann 

 
Beth Bronson also shared her own concerns about the impact large industrial facilities have on the 
existing rural residential character of the area in addition to the new higher density single family 
residential and townhomes popping up on Bowman Road. Ms. Bronson shared disappointment and 
fear that the approval of more industrial projects in the area will “set in stone” more industrial 
development in the primarily residential area. She added that truck traffic is already an issue and 
will continue to get worse, noting the development is a faster pace than the NCDOT funded 
improvements for the Buckhorn interchange area.  
 
Craig Lloyd, 3103 US 70 W, explained that he is a long-time Orange County and Efland resident and 
is working on a park project across the street from the subject property. Mr. Lloyd shared that while 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

August 8, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Efland will be impacted by growth in the area, it is a good corridor for economic development and 
employment growth. He shared his support of the project. 
 
Kurt Pearson commented that he liked the fact the property is already zoned for light industrial in 
the Orange County EBD-2 district which was put together with extensive studies and cooperation 
with the County in the past. He added that the property is just outside the G-2 primary growth area. 
He also commented that the one waiver request is reasonable, and it makes sense to add to the 
buffers along the outside of the property. He also noted that the applicant has shown a willingness 
to listen to the people around them and the improvements to the roadways seem to be well-
studied.  He concluded that the project would be good for the area.  
 
Kurt Pearson made a motion to approve the request as follows: 

Motion to approve the LM(CD) zoning as presented; and  
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 

• Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area (Mebane CLP, p.66); 
• Serves Mebane CLP Growth Management Goal 1.7 through the support [of] industrial 

development at existing industrial parks near I-40/85 (pp.17, 59 & 82) 
 
Keith Hoover seconded the motion which passed unanimously. Mr. Tulauskas confirmed that the 
request would be scheduled for a public hearing before the Mebane City Council on September 12th. 

 
5. New Business 

The following new business items were shared with the Board: 
• Staff is working on scheduling a Planning Board basics training 
• There is a community meeting on Wednesday August 17th to kick off engagement for our 

recreation and parks master plan and our update to the bicycle and pedestrian 
transportation plan 

 
Kurt Pearson asked if the Kingsdown conditional rezoning request would need to come back to 
Planning Board prior to advancing to City Council public hearing. Ashley Ownbey responded that as 
of now it would not need to come back to Planning Board because changes made to the proposed 
development reduce the intensity of the project and do not significantly impact the site plan layout. 
She elaborated on these changes noting that they are in the August City Council agenda packet.  

 
6. Adjournment 

Chairman Tulauskas adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 
 



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #4 
RZ 22-11 
Conditional Rezoning –  
Tupelo North 

Presenter 
Audrey Vogel, City Planner 

Applicant 
Lebanon Road 3, LLC,  
c/o James Parker, Jr.    
320 Executive Court 
Hillsborough, NC 27278 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
1818 Saddle Club 
Road  

Orange County 
GPINs  9826425313, 
9826511986 

Proposed Zoning 
R-12(CD) 

Current Zoning 
R-10 SUP, R-20 

Size 
 +/-87.73 acres  

Surrounding 
Zoning 
R-10, R-12(CD), R-
20, Orange County 
AR 

Surrounding Land 
Uses 
Residential & 
Vacant 

Utilities 
To be extended at 
developer’s expense 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
No 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
Lebanon Road 3, LLC, c/o James Parker, Jr., is requesting approval to conditionally rezone two properties 
totaling +/- 87.73 acres located at 1818 Saddle Club Rd (PINs 9826425313 and 9826511986) from R-10 and 
R-20 to R-12 (CD) to allow for “Tupelo North,” a residential cluster development of 207 single-family homes. 
The property is located in Orange County outside of the City Limits within the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction 
(ETJ).  Lebanon Road Partners has the property under contract to purchase, contingent upon approval of 
the conditional rezoning.  

The subdivision is intended to be an extension of the Tupelo Junction subdivision under construction 
immediately to the south of the site. The development will be accessed through Tupelo Junction’s street 
connections at Lebanon Road and Saddle Club Road. One HOA will exist for both developments and the 
amenities will be inclusive for all residents of Tupelo Junction and the proposed Tupelo North. 

The site-specific plan includes the following on-site amenities and dedications:  
• The applicant proposes to construct all internal roads with 5’ sidewalks on one side. 
• The site plan features an amenity clubhouse and pool with and +/- 37.65 acres of private open 

space to be maintained by the HOA. 
• The applicant will provide 21,250 s.f. of public multi-use path. 

Requested waivers: 
• The UDO requires side setbacks of 10’ and 18’ for corner lots, and the applicant is requesting that 

they be reduced to 7.5’ minimum and 13’ for corner lots. 
• The UDO requires rear setbacks of 25’ and the applicant is requesting that they be reduced to 20’. 
• The UDO requires a minimum lot width of 65’ and the applicant is requesting that they be reduced 

to 60’. 
• The UDO requires the applicant to dedicate 5.94 acres in public recreation area.  The applicant is 

providing 0.49 acre of onsite public recreation in the form of a public multi-use path and proposes 
to make a payment-in-lieu for the remainder of the required public recreation requirement 
($16,126.28 for 5.45 acres). 

The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan four times and the applicant has revised 
the plan to reflect the comments.  

Summit Design and Engineering Services conducted a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) which proposed a right 
turn lane traveling west on Lebanon Road at the intersection of Stagecoach Road. NCDOT and City staff 
agree mitigation is required at the intersection of Lebanon and Stagecoach and is the responsibility of 
the Tupelo North development. However, a final decision has not been made as to the type of 
improvement. Mitigation may include a traffic signal, compact roundabout, or a right turn lane as 
described in the applicant’s TIA. Any mitigation is subject to NCDOT approval. The developer has 
agreed to make NCDOT required improvements still under consideration. 

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the improvements at his own expense. 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

Recommendation 
The Planning Staff recommends approval of the request.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-12(CD) zoning as presented.  
 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is “…generally residential and 

commercial in nature…” (Mebane CLP, p.66);  
 

 Is providing community facilities in the form of a greenway consistent with Growth Management 
Goal 1.4 (p. 17, 83)  

 
 Provides a greenway and open space in a developing area, connecting to other locations, consistent 

with Open Space and Natural Resource Protection Goal 4.3 (p. 17, 89, & 90);  
 
3. Motion to deny the R-12(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design. 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Site Plan 
4. Planning Project Report  
5. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
6. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 
7. Traffic Impact Analysis Executive Summary (Full TIA available via this link) 

a. RKA Review of TIA 

https://cityofmebane.sharefile.com/d-s439e832a5f864d58be45ce154a22406a




1 inch = 1,000 feet

S
A

D
D

L
E

 C
L

U
B

 R
D

S
U

N
D

O
W

N
 D

R

KAYAK CT

H
E

A
R

T
P

IN
E

 D
R

LEBANON RD

E STAGECOACH RD

D
O

E
 R

U
N

 R
D

B
U

R
N

IN
G

 M
A

P
L

E
 L

N

PADDLE LN

FIS
HER T

RL

VERCLAY RD

R
O

Y
A

L
 O

A
K

 L
N M

IL
L 

C
R

E
E

K
 R

D

LAKEVIEW
 DR

C
A

S
E

Y
 L

N

LARIMIE DR

JO
N

Q
U

IL
 T

R
L

TALISKER TRL

B-2

R-8

R-12

R-10

R-20

R-8

R-8(CD)

O&I

R-20

R-10

B-3

R-12

R-12(CD)

NC CGIA, Maxar

DATE: 09/28/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE Conditional Rezoning
Tupelo North

ZONING MAP

R-20 | Residential

R-15 | Residential

R-12 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-12 | Residential

R-10 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-10 | Residential

R-8 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-8 | Residential

R-6 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-6 | Residential

MHP

O&I (CD) | Office & Institutional Conditional

O&I | Office & Institutional

M-2 (CD) | Light Manufacturing Conditional

M-2 | Light Manufacturing

M-1 (CD) | Heavy Manufacturing Conditional

M-1 | Heavy Manufacturing

B-3 | Neighborhood Business

B-2 & M-2 | Gen. Business & Heavy Manufacturing

B-2 (CD) | General Business Conditional

B-2 | General Business

B-1 (CD) | Central Business Conditional

B-1 | Central Business

City of Mebane Zoning

ORANGE COUNTY
AR

Subject Properties

City Limits

ETJ



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C1.0 - Cover, 9/27/2022 5:38:59 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 300'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



TOTAL PRIVATE COMMON OPEN SPACE PROVIDED:  24.18 AC (SEE OPEN SPACE TABLE)

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT MAKE ANY MODIFICATIONS TO THE APPROVED DRAWINGS WITHOUT
PRIOR APPROVAL OF BOTH THE DESIGN ENGINEER AND LOCAL INSPECTOR. R

E
V

.  
   

D
A

T
E

   
   

  D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  B

Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C1.1 - Cover (2), 9/27/2022 5:39:25 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

N/A

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



SS  >

158

161

160

159

154 155 156 157

146

145
143

163166 164165167141 139142 140

148
149 150 151 153152147

INV.= 580.67

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C2.0 - Exist-Demo, 9/27/2022 5:39:44 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 120'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



SCM
"I"

SCM
"D"

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C3.0 - Site Plan, 9/27/2022 5:40:25 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 100'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C3.0a - Sheet Index, 9/27/2022 5:40:58 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 100'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C3.1 - Site Plan (2), 9/27/2022 5:41:28 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C3.2 - Site Plan (3), 9/27/2022 5:42:02 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



149

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C3.3 - Site Plan (4), 9/27/2022 5:42:35 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C3.4 - Site Plan (5), 9/27/2022 5:43:07 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
OU

NT
Y

OR
AN

GE
 C

OU
NT

Y

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C3.5 - Multi-Use Trail, 9/27/2022 5:43:28 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 120'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       

10' MULTI-USE TRAIL
CONTINUED FROM

TUPELO  JUNCTION
SOUTH

PER MEBANE GENERAL
PLAN, MULTI-USE

TRAIL PASSES ONTO
MILL CREEK

PROPERTY, DESIGN &
CONSTRUCTION BY

OTHERS

10' MULTI-USE TRAIL
RETURNS TO

TUPELO  JUNCTION
PROPERTY AND

CONTINUES TO MILL
CREEK AT SHARED

CROSSING

10' MULTI-USE GREENWAY TRAIL THROUGH
POWER LINE EASEMENT.  SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL BY DUKE ENERGY, DISCUSSION IN
PROGRESS. CONNECTIVITY TO EASTERN
PROPERTIES PROVIDED AS PAYMENT IN LIEU
(~220') TO AVOID DEAD END.



INV.= 580.67

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C5.1 - G&SD Plan, 9/27/2022 5:43:59 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C5.2 - G&SD Plan (2), 9/27/2022 5:44:32 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



149

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C5.3 - G&SD Plan (3), 9/27/2022 5:44:55 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C5.4 - G&SD Plan (4), 9/27/2022 5:45:29 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C6.1 - Utility Plan, 9/27/2022 5:45:52 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C6.2 - Utility Plan (2), 9/27/2022 5:46:16 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



149

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C6.3 - Utility Plan (3), 9/27/2022 5:46:40 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C6.4 - Utility Plan (4), 9/27/2022 5:47:05 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C6.5 - Utility Plan, 9/27/2022 5:47:44 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 20'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C8.0 - Landscape Plan, 9/27/2022 5:48:15 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

VARIOUS

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C8.1 - Landscape Plan (2), 9/27/2022 5:49:19 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 40'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS © 2022 TomTom 

VAN

11

8
9

10

13

12

5

14

7

6

4

3

CITY OF MEBANE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER AND INTERNAL STREETS, DESIGN AND
INSTALLATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF MEBANE STANDARDS, DETAILS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

WAIVERS REQUESTED FOR LOT WIDTH OF 60' AND REDUCED SETBACKS LISTED ABOVE.

R
E

V
.  

   
D

A
T

E
   

   
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  B
Y

DATE:

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

PROJECT MANAGER:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING NAME:

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN HEREON ARE
THE PROPERTY OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

THE INFORMATION ON THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR
USE ON ANY OTHER SITE OR PROJECT.  THE

REPRODUCTION OR OTHER USE OF THIS
DRAWING IN WHOLE OR IN PART, WITHOUT

WRITTEN CONSENT OF EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.,
IS PROHIBITED.

COPYRIGHT 2022 EarthCentric Engineering, Inc.

SHEET NO.

P:\22-16\22-16 Drawings\_Working\22-16 Working.dwg, C9.0 - Traffic Improvment, 9/27/2022 5:49:45 PM

E
ar

th
C

en
tr

ic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c.
Li

ce
ns

e 
# 

C
-2

63
8

20
4 

W
. C

la
y 

S
tr

ee
t

M
eb

an
e,

 N
C

 2
73

02
P

ho
ne

:(
91

9)
 5

63
-9

04
1

F
ax

:
(9

19
) 

30
4-

32
34

E
-M

ai
l:

P
hi

l.K
oc

h@
E

ar
th

C
en

tr
ic

.c
om

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

P
H

IL
 K

O
C

H
 -

 N
C

P
E

 #
22

63
4

22-16 WORKING

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

MAY 03, 2022

1" = 50'

N/A

CPK

CPK

22-16

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

   
1 

  0
8/

09
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
2 

  0
8/

30
/2

02
2 

   
 P

E
R

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

P
K

   
3 

  0
9/

27
/2

02
2 

   
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
P

K

       



 

PAGE 1 

PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE 09/27/2022 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 22-11 
PROJECT NAME Tupelo North 

APPLICANT 

Lebanon Road 3, LLC 
c/o James Parker, Jr. 
320 Executive Court 
Hillsborough, NC 27278  

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 2 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 4 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 7 
STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION .................................................................. PAGE 8



 

PAGE 2 

ZONING REPORT 
EXISTING ZONE R-10, Residential and R-20, Residential 
REQUESTED ACTION R-12(CD) (Residential, Conditional Zoning District) 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Bee farm, Single-Family Residential, Vacant 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 87.73 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 
Lee’s Bees, Inc. & Jeffrey R. Lee 
1818 Saddle Club Rd. 
Mebane, NC 27302 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Request to rezone two properties totaling +/- 87.73 acres located at 1818 Saddle 
Club Rd (PINs 9826425313 and 9826511986) from R-10 and R-20 to R-12 (CD) to 
allow for a residential cluster development of 207 single-family homes by Lebanon 
Road 3, LLC. 

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 

The subject property is surrounded by adjacent residential zoning including R-20 lots 
to the south and west, and the Tupelo Junction subdivision zoned R-12(CD) 
immediately south of site. Properties to the northeast and north are in Orange 
County’s planning jurisdiction and zoned AR (Agricultural Residential).  

SITE HISTORY 
This property was approved for a Special Use Permit and rezoning request in 2005 for 
a Master Planned community called The Landing at Lake Michael. The vested rights 
for that plan are expired. 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO  
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO   

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The proposed rezoning is a continuation of the adjacent Tupelo Junction subdivision, 
which is south of the site and zoned R-12(CD). The zoning is also consistent with 
nearby subdivisions in the area including Havenstone, the Retreat at Lake Michael, 
and Stagecoach Corner. It will introduce denser zoning to the more rural areas to the 
north and east, though the proposed zone is consistent with their residential nature. 



 

PAGE 3 

 



 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE 
The site is largely forested and includes a single-family dwelling and 
apiary/bee farm use. An overhead power line easement runs across the 
southern part of the property. 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning to develop two 
properties totaling +/- 87.73 acres located off of Saddle Club Road (PINs 
9826425313 & 9826511986) to allow for a residential cluster development 
of 207 single-family homes. 

PROPOSED ZONING R-12 (CD) (Residential, Conditional Zoning District) 
PARCEL SIZE +/- 87.73 acres 

AREA LAND USE 

The properties to the site’s west and south are currently undeveloped but 
are proposed as residential subdivisions. The adjoining lots to the southeast 
are occupied by single-family homes on one to four-acre lots. Larger lots to 
the east include an eight-acre lot with a single-family dwelling as well as a 
fourteen-acre, unimproved lot. The two lots to the north are large: the 
northeastern lot of 28.94 acres is partially cleared, while the northwestern 
lot of 88.24 acres is partially cleared and includes a single-family residence 
as well as some other small structures.  

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

The applicant will provide 21,250 s.f. of public multi-use path and proposes 
to make a payment-in-lieu for the remainder of the required public open 
space requirement ($16,126.28 for 5.45 acres).  
 
The site plan features an amenity clubhouse and pool with and +/- 37.65 
acres of private open space to be maintained by the HOA. 

WAIVER REQUESTED YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUESTED 
WAIVER(S) 

The following waivers are requested from dimensional requirements: 
  UDO Requirement Proposed  
Minimum Lot Width  65’   60'  
Minimum Side Setback  10’  7.5’  
Minimum Corner Setback  18’  13’  
Minimum Rear Setback  25’   20’   

   

  



 

PAGE 5 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-4 Secondary Growth Area 
Conservation 

OTHER LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS 
Floodplain present 
Graham-Mebane Reservoir Water Supply (WS-II) Watershed 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

GROWTH MANAGEMENT 1.4 
Ensure that adequate community facilities are integrated into new 
development to reduce distances to parks, schools, and community 
centers. 
 

 OPEN SPACE AND NATURAL RESOURCE PROTECTION 4.3 
Support park, greenway, and open space expansion in developed and 
developing areas, prioritizing connectivity between each location. 
 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 6 

 



 

PAGE 7 

UTILITIES REPORT 
AVAILABLE UTILITIES YES   NO 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the project is 
estimated to require 31,050 gallons per day of water and sewer 
service to support the development’s 207 single-family 
residences. Water service is provided from a 12-inch water line 
to be constructed with the extension of Broad Oak Drive 
through Tupelo Junction. Sewer service is provided from an off-
site 12-inch sewer outfall will be extended from the proposed 
Preserve at Mill Creek Development and from a connection with 
an 8-inch sewer line to be constructed with the extension of 
Broad Oak Drive through Tupelo Junction 

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY APPLICANT Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities, as 
described in AWCK’s Technical Memo. 

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO ABSORB 
PROJECT  

The City has adequate Water & Sewer Supply to meet the 
domestic and fire flow demands of the project. 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE LONG 
RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The subject properties are situated north of Lebanon Road and 
west of Saddle Club Road. The subdivision will be accessed 
through street connections with Lebanon Road and Saddle Club 
Road through the Tupelo Junction subdivision, which is under 
construction.  
 
Lebanon Road is a state-maintained secondary route with an 
average daily traffic volume of 3,700 trips at this location. It has 
a current Level of Service (LOS) C and is projected to have a LOS 
D in 2040. It has a Safety Score of 44.6, which reflects a history 
of some traffic incidents on this road section. The traffic volume 
on the nearby section of Saddle Club Road was 350 trips, and 
that section had a moderate Safety Score of 56.  
 
There was one fatal accident to the east of the site on Saddle 
Run Road in 2017 and one serious accident at the intersection 
of Saddle Run Road and Lebanon Road in 2021. 



 

PAGE 8 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

Off-site street improvements identified in the TIA review 
indicate a proposed right turn lane traveling west on Lebanon 
Road at its intersection with Stagecoach Road. NCDOT and City 
staff agree mitigation is required at the intersection of Lebanon 
and Stagecoach and is the responsibility of the Tupelo North 
development. However, a final decision has not been made as 
to the type of improvement. Mitigation may include a traffic 
signal, compact roundabout, or a right turn lane as described in 
the applicant’s TIA. Any mitigation is subject to NCDOT approval. 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE MEBANE 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN? 

 
YES   NO 
 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant will provide sidewalks on one side of each street 
in the development. The site plan also features a multi-use path 
to be publicly dedicated. The path will connect to adjacent 
residential areas as part of a larger multi-use path network. 
Bicycle racks are being provided at all private recreation 
facilities. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE 
BY DESIGN 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Tupelo North” is consistent with the 
guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. Specifically, it serves 
Goals 1.4 and 4.3. The proposed project will be developed as a 
residential cluster subdivision compliant with the watershed 
overlay district and will provide a public multi-use path.  

 



W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M 

 
 

 

October 4, 2022 
 

Mr. Phil Koch, PE 
EarthCentric Engineering Inc. 
204 W. Clay Street 
Mebane, NC 27302 

 

Subject: Tupelo Junction North– Water and Sewer 

Dear Mr. Koch: 

Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for Tupelo Junction North and in accordance with the UDO, this memo is 
provided to indicate that I have reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable 
and meeting City of Mebane requirements as follows: 

 

A. Water system – Water service is provided from a 12-inch water line to be constructed with the extension of 
Broad Oak Drive through Tupelo Junction.  The remaining streets will be served from this line with 8-inch water 
line extensions with appropriate valves and fire hydrant spacing.  When designed and installed to City and 
State standards, these public lines will become part of the City’s water system. The estimated daily water use 
for this project is 31,050 gallons per day (207 homes at 150 gallons per day each). The City has adequate water 
capacity available to meet the domestic demand and fire flow requirements of this project. 

 

B. Sanitary Sewer system – Sewer service is provided from an off-site 12-inch sewer outfall will be extended 
through the proposed Preserve at Mill Creek Development to Tupelo North and from a connection with an 8-
inch sewer line to be constructed with the extension of Broad Oak Drive through Tupelo Junction.  Internal to 
the project site are proposed 8-inch sewer lines with appropriate manhole spacing.  When designed and 
installed to City and State standards, these public lines will become part of the City’s sanitary sewer collection 
system. The state permitted flow will be 49,860 gallons per day (207 at 240 gpd each assuming average of 3-
bedroom room homes as indicated on the plans). The estimated daily sewer use when tributary is 31,050 
gallons per day (207 homes at 150 gallons per day each). The City has adequate sewer capacity available at the 
downstream North Regional Sewer Pump Station and at the WRRF to meet this demand. 

 
If there are any questions, please let me know. 
Sincerely, 

 
Franz K. Holt, P.E. City Engineer 
CC:  Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 

 Preston Mitchell, Assistant City Manager 

Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 

 
CITY OF MEBANE       106 East Washington Street  |  Mebane, NC 27302      919 563 5901          fholt@cityofmebane.com 

http://www/
mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com


 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

Technical Memorandum         

Date: October 4, 2022 

To: Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 

From: Franz K. Holt, City Engineer  

Subject:  Tupelo Junction North 

 
City Engineering has reviewed the Preliminary Site Plans for Tupelo Junction North submitted September 
27th, 2022 by Phil Koch, P.E. with EarthCentric Engineering, Inc. and provides the following technical 
comments. 
 

A. General 
Tupelo Junction North is a proposed phased (2) single family residential cluster development 
proposed to be built on 87.7 acres north of Tupelo Junction which is currently under construction.  
The project proposes 207 single family lots with a min. lot size of 7,200 square feet as allowed by 
the UDO for R-12 Cluster Development (which allows for a 40% reduction in lot size with the 
balance of the lot area being placed in private common open space).  
 
The property is in the Graham-Mebane Lake public water supply watershed non-critical area. Plans 
show using the high-density option which is allowed with new engineered stormwater control 
facilities receiving storm water runoff from proposed new development (max. built upon area of 
30%).  
 
Water service is provided from a 12-inch water line to be constructed with the extension of Broad 
Oak Drive through Tupelo Junction.   Sewer service is provided from an off-site 12-inch sewer 
outfall will be extended through the proposed Preserve at Mill Creek Development to Tupelo 
Junction North (per agreement between developers) and from a connection with an 8-inch sewer 
line to be constructed with the extension of Broad Oak Drive through Tupelo Junction. 
 
Internal streets are considered local and constructed to a 31-ft. b-b curb and gutter section with 
a 5-ft. wide concrete sidewalk being typically located on one side of the street.  A 10-ft. wide paved 
multi-use path (City maintained) is proposed to connect to a paved greenway system that connects 
to the Preserve at Mill Creek Development and Tupelo Junction and runs the middle of the 
development along the Duke Energy Transmission Tower Line Easement per their standards and 
agreement. 
 
The project includes street connections with Lebanon Road and Saddle Club Road through Tupelo 
Junction (under construction) and a future connection with the proposed Preserve at Mill Creek 
Development (per agreement between developers).  Off-site street improvements identified in 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

the TIA review indicate a proposed right turn lane traveling west on Lebanon Road at its 
intersection with Stagecoach Road.  NCDOT and the City’s Traffic consultant indicate that a signal 
or compact traffic round-a-bout would be better mitigate traffic needs at this intersection.  The 
developer has agreed to make NCDOT required improvements still under consideration and prior 
to the 101st building permit application.  
 

B. Availability of City Water and Sewer 
 

Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for Tupelo Junction and in accordance with paragraph 7-4.3 
A.3.a. in the UDO, this memo is provided to indicate that I have reviewed the preliminary water 
and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meeting City of Mebane requirements as 
follows:  
 

1. Water system – Water service is provided from a 12-inch water line to be constructed with the 
extension of Broad Oak Drive through Tupelo Junction.  The remaining streets will be served 
from this line with 8-inch water line extensions with appropriate valves and fire hydrant 
spacing.  When designed and installed to City and State standards, these public lines will 
become part of the City’s water system. The estimated daily water use for this project is 31,050 
gallons per day (207 homes at 150 gallons per day each). The City has adequate water capacity 
available to meet the domestic demand and fire flow requirements of this project.   
 

2. Sanitary Sewer system – Sewer service is provided from an off-site 12-inch sewer outfall will 
be extended through the proposed Preserve at Mill Creek Development to Tupelo North and 
from a connection with an 8-inch sewer line to be constructed with the extension of Broad 
Oak Drive through Tupelo Junction.  Internal to the project site are proposed 8-inch sewer lines 
with appropriate manhole spacing.  When designed and installed to City and State standards, 
these public lines will become part of the City’s sanitary sewer collection system. The state 
permitted flow will be 49,860 gallons per day (207 at 240 gpd each assuming average of 3-
bedroom room homes as indicated on the plans). The estimated daily sewer use when 
tributary is 31,050 gallons per day (207 homes at 150 gallons per day each). The City has 
adequate sewer capacity available at the downstream North Regional Sewer Pump Station and 
at the WRRF to meet this demand. 
 

C. Watershed Overlay District and Phase II Stormwater Requirements 
 
1. Watershed Overlay District requirements are provided in the UDO. 

These requirements in the UDO are for the Back-Creek Watershed, which includes the 
Graham-Mebane Lake. This project lies in the GWA non-critical area allowing up to 30% built 
upon area with engineered stormwater controls. The proposed stormwater management 
devices shown on the plans are intended to receive stormwater runoff from the proposed new 



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

development and will meet the requirements of the Water Supply Watershed Rules. Upon the 
project being completed and the site being stabilized with permanent ground cover, the 
stormwater management devices temporarily serving as erosion control measures will be 
converted to the designed permanent stormwater management device (owned and 
maintained by the property owners’ association).  A 20-year maintenance bond and annual 
inspection fee will be posted with the City upon completion of the stormwater management 
devices. 
 

2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance 
The UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and requires compliance with the 
Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance (which is a stand-alone ordinance titled the 
Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance (SPCO)). The standards in the UDO are 
general standards as the Ordinance itself provides detailed standards.  The SPCO does apply 
to this project as it will disturb more than one acre of land and it is estimated that the new 
built upon will be more than 24% of the site. The project proposes to provide four stormwater 
management devices (all devices where perm. water surface is 2 feet or more are to be fenced 
as required by ordinance). These devices will be designed to meet the SPCO as a part of final 
construction plan submittal/approval process. All stormwater management devices will be 
owned and maintained by the property owners’ association. 

 
D. Storm Drainage System 

Sec. 5-4. D. in the UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The preliminary site 
plans include a preliminary piping layout that indicates certain pipe locations, inlets, and discharge 
points. Stormwater flows from these pipes will be transported to stormwater management 
devices.  Design of the storm drainage system will be in accordance with the City’s Storm Drainage 
Design Manual. 

E. Street Access and TIA 

Proposed streets shown on the plans are considered local and to be constructed to City of 
Mebane standards (31’ B-B width and rolled curb and gutter) with sidewalk located typically on 
one side.  These local streets will connect to Lebanon Road and Saddle Club Road through Tupelo 
Junction (under construction).  In addition, a connection to St. Andrews Drive is proposed with 
the proposed development of The Preserve at Mill Creek. Two street stubs are provided to 
adjacent properties for possible future extension ending in temporary cul-de-sacs.  When 
designed and installed to City standards, these public streets, sidewalks, and multi-use path will 
become part of the City’s systems. 
 
Also required are off-site improvements identified in the TIA at Stagecoach Road and Lebanon 
Road intersection.  NCDOT is reviewing the possibility of a traffic signal or compact round-a-bout.  



 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

The developer’s TIA has indicated a possible right turn lane from Lebanon Road to Stagecoach 
Road to mitigate the need for additional improvements at the intersection.  The developer has 
agreed to construct required improvements by the 101st building permit application.  The design 
and construction of these future determined improvements are subject to NCDDOT review and 
approval.   
 

F. Construction Plan Submittal 
 

Sec. 7-6.7. A. in the UDO indicates that construction plans for all street facilities, including water 
and sewer facilities, shall be submitted following preliminary plat or site plan approval; therefore, 
construction plans are not required as a part of the site plan review. A utility plan is provided which 
generally shows the proposed water lines, sewer lines, and storm drainage and stormwater 
management devices to indicate that the project is feasible for utility service and providing 
stormwater management. Appendix E which is included in the UDO is a Construction Document 
checklist which is to be provided when construction plans are submitted after Preliminary Site Plan 
approval.   
 
Based on city engineering review of the referenced preliminary site plans, it is my opinion that said 
plans are in substantial compliance with the UDO. 



                                                                                                                      

                                                                      SEPTEMBER 2022    
                               

Traffic Impact Analysis 

Tupelo Junction North Subdivision 

                               Lebanon Road Mebane, NC 

  

    

  

                                                          
                                                          

 

 

  

  

 





 

 
 

 
Tupelo Junction North Subdivision 
Lebanon Road (SR 1306) near Saddle Club Road (SR  1346) 
Mebane, North Carolina 
 
Traffic Impact Analysis 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
              

              09/20/2022    
  

Prepared by 
Summit Design & Engineering 

320 Executive Court 
Hillsborough, NC  27278 

License Number:  P-0339 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for 
Lebanon Road 3, LLC 

320 Executive Court 
Hillsborough, NC 27278 

 
 

 
 

September 2022 





          

 
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis   a 

 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 
 

An expansion for a proposed residential development consisting of two hundred seven (207) single family 
homes is planned to be constructed as phases six and seven adjacent to the Tupelo Junction South 
(Phases 1-5) development, and will be called Tupelo Junction North.   The development is on a site on 
Lebanon Road (SR 1306) east of Stagecoach Road (SR 1376) and west of Saddle Club Road (SR 1346) in 
the City of Mebane in Orange County, North Carolina.  The development is being proposed on a single 
large parcel totaling approximately 88 acres.  The development will be built in two (2) phases over a 
three-year period after work commences in 2026, and after the proposed completion of Tupelo Junction 
South.  No new site entrances are proposed, as Tupelo Junction North streets will connect to existing 
street stubs in Tupelo Junction South.  This will allow access for Tupelo Junction North via the new street 
entrances on Lebanon Road near Stagecoach Road, and the second access on Saddle Club Road north of 
Lebanon Road.  The access points are street type entrances, with one entry lane and two exit lanes onto 
Lebanon Road, and one entry lane and one exit lane for the access onto Saddle Club Road.  The accesses 
have been designed to NCDOT and City of Mebane standards, as all internal streets are proposed to be 
City maintained streets. 
 

Summit Design & Engineering analyzed the development to determine the potential traffic impacts that 
this project may have on the roadway network.  The analysis will identify any transportation 
improvements that may be required to accommodate the impacts of both the projected background 
traffic and the new development traffic.  The following intersections were included in the study: 
 

• North 5th Street & Stagecoach Road (SR 1996) (Alamance) 
• Lebanon Road (SR 1306) & Supper Club Road (SR 1304) 
• Lebanon Road (SR 1306) & Stagecoach Road (SR 1376) (Orange) 
• Lebanon Road (SR 1306) & Broad Oak Dr. (Site Dr. #1) 
• Lebanon Road (SR 1306) & Lake Michael Park 
• Lebanon Road (SR 1306) & Saddle Club Road (SR 1346) 
• Saddle Club Road (SR 1346) & Shallow Spring Dr. (Site Dr. #2) 

 

The Vicinity Map shows the location of the site near Mebane, NC, and the intersections in the  
vicinity that are part of this Traffic Impact Analysis.  The subject intersections were analyzed for the  
following scenarios: 
 

• 2022 Existing Conditions 
• 2028 Future No Build Conditions 
• 2028 Future Build Conditions 

 
 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    b 

 
 
 
Turn Movement Count data was collected at the four existing subject intersections for the AM and PM 
peak hours, from 6 AM to 9 AM and from 4 PM to 7 PM to allow for determining the exact peak hours.  
The turn movement counts were collected on September 13, 2022 while all traditional and year-round 
schools were in session.  The data was collected in 15-minute intervals at all locations to determine the 
exact peak hour within the data  collection period. 
 
A scoping discussion was held with City of Mebane Planning staff, as well as NCDOT Division 7 staff, to 
obtain background information and to determine the elements to be covered in this Traffic Impact 
Analysis (TIA).  The topics discussed involved selecting the intersections to be studied, the background 
growth rate, and any recently approved developments and/or TIP projects that may be impacted or create 
an impact on the study area. 
 
Based on discussions with City and NCDOT staff, it was determined that the study corridor would include 
the main public street intersections along Lebanon Road from and including the intersection at Supper 
Club Road (SR 1304) to the intersection at Saddle Club Road (SR 1346).  As a result of a number of nearby 
developments under construction, or in the approval process, Stagecoach Road was also included in the 
study, west to the intersection at North 5th Street.  In addition, the proposed site driveway intersections, 
on Lebanon Road between Stagecoach Road and Saddle Club Road (Broad Oak Drive), and on Saddle Club 
Road north of Lebanon Road (Shallow Spring Drive) will be included in the study. 
 
As part of the City of Mebane Unified Development Ordinance, there is a requirement to provide a capacity 
analysis of all transportation modes.  However, in light of the lack of a transit system in the area, it was 
agreed that analysis of the transit mode would not be necessary for this study.  Similarly, bicycle and 
pedestrian movements are presently not accommodated with walkways or sidewalks on Lebanon Road, 
although there is a continuous sidewalk on Stagecoach Road, from west of North 1st Street through North 
9th Street.  Sidewalks are being constructed within the subdivision, and will provide internal connections 
within the development to enhance pedestrian and bicycle movements. 
 
Following the scoping discussion, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was prepared and submitted 
to the City of Mebane, and NCDOT, Division Seven.  A full copy of the Memorandum of Understanding is 
included in the appendix of the full Traffic Impact Analysis. 
 

 

 

 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    c 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    d 

Adjacent Developments 
 

Several developments nearby the study area that have been recently approved and/or under construction 
that will need to be considered as part of this Traffic Impact Analysis, specifically accounting for the future 
trips created when they are completed.  These developments have been identified by NCDOT and the City 
of Mebane staff and are outlined below with proposed buildout years.  Any roadway improvements for 
these developments recommended in their respective TIA’s will be implemented in the Synchro models 
for the 2028 No Build and Buildout scenarios for Tupelo Junction North. 
 

ADJACENT DEVELOPMENTS: 

Stagecoach Corner (2023)   Tupelo Junction South (2026) 
  Havenstone Phase II  (46 lots -2023)  North First Street Townhomes (2028) 
  Potter’s Mill (2024)    North Mebane Village (2028) * 

Westcott Townhomes  (2024)   The Preserve at Mill Creek (2028) * 
  Saddle Club Trails (2025) *    
 
(*) – Denotes the development is in approval process, but will be considered as built for this TIA. 
 
The full process and sketched used for trip distribution and trip assignment for each of these developments 
is contained in the appendix of the full TIA report as well as briefly explained below.  Many of the trip 
distributions and assignments were derived from past TIA information available for the development.  This 
maintains consistency between the previous TIA results and this study, and validates the results of all the 
studies. 
 
A proposed development on Stagecoach Road, named Stagecoach Corner, is a subdivision of a size (35 
single family homes) that did not require any traffic study as part of its approval.  However, it has been 
approved and under construction at this time.  A simple distribution of trips to and from the development 
of 60 % to/from the west and 40 % to/from the east was utilized for the estimation of the trips.  A 50/50 
split of trips at Stagecoach Road and Lebanon Road intersection of Stagecoach Corner generated traffic 
would provide a pattern of trips similar to the adjacent developments. 
 
The Havenstone subdivision (169 single family homes , two phases) on Lebanon Road east of Saddle Club 
Road is partially complete, and still continuing to add single family homes to buildout.  Phase I is complete, 
but Phase II has approximately 46 lots left to completion.  This includes partially constructed homes, ones 
that are nearly finished, but not occupied when the turn movement counts were taken.  Therefore, using 
the distributions for the TIA for Havenstone, the new trips created by the remaining 46 units to be 
constructed and occupied were assigned to the network. 
 
 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    e 

Both the Wescott Townhomes (110 townhomes) and Potter’s Mill (42 single family homes) developments 
are residential subdivisions located north of Stagecoach Road along N. 1st Street, outside the study area 
for this TIA, but have distributions and trips assigned for the subject intersections on Stagecoach Road at 
North 5th Street and Lebanon Road.  Both of these developments used identical distributions of trips 
to/from Lebanon Road, North 9th Street and North 5th Street. 
 
Saddle Club Trails is proposed as a 125 unit single family home subdivision proposed to be located on the 
east side of Saddle Club Road, north of Lebanon Road.  The subdivision will provide two access points on 
Saddle Club Road, and both of these street intersections will be south of the access drive for Tupelo 
Junction (Shallow Springs Drive).  A TIA was completed and submitted for this subdivision, and the trip 
distribution and trip assignment was utilized as indicated in that TIA.  A further distribution of the trips 
generated to/from the west and south of Stagecoach Road was needed as well. 
 
Tupelo Junction South is a 183 single family home subdivision currently under construction on Lebanon 
Road east of Stagecoach Road, and will provide two access points for the development.  A new street will 
intersect Lebanon Road between Stagecoach Road and Lake Michael Park for the primary access point 
for the subdivision.  The second access point will intersect Saddle Club Road north of Lebanon Road and 
the Saddle Club Trails development. 
 
The North First Street Townhomes development is proposing 149 townhomes to be constructed on a site 
that is located on the west side of N. 1st Steet and north of Stagecoach Road, which is west of the study 
area.  A TIA was completed and submitted for this development, and with new trips shown to be assigned 
to the intersections eastward on Stagecoach Road to Lebanon Road, these trips are incorporated into this 
study.  It should also be noted that City of Mebane staff indicated that this development, currently in the 
approval process, is the same parcel and proposed land use as Wescott Townhomes, and had been 
renamed by the current applicant.  Since previous TIA’s included trips for both names for the site, in order 
to maintain some consistency and a more conservative approach, it was agreed to show both named 
developments for that site in this TIA. 
 
North Mebane Village is proposed as a mixed-use development located north of Stagecoach Road, and 
on the east side of North 1st Street.  It is proposed to consist of 106 single family homes, 130 townhomes, 
40,000 square-feet of office space, 64,000 square-feet of retail shopping spaces, and a 5,000 square-foot 
(super) convenience store with gas pumps at full buildout in 2028.  While the development will be phased 
construction over several years, trips generated for the full build have been considered for this study.  
Trips generated and distributed for Stagecoach Road at 5th Street were integrated into this study from 
that development’s TIA.  However, the intersections to the east of North 5th Street on Stagecoach Road 
and Lebanon Road need to have those new trips from North Mebane Village assigned to them, and were 
accomplished by using ratios similar to those used in other TIA reports for this area. 
 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    f 

The Preserve at Mill Creek, an additional 590 single family homes are proposed to be constructed and 
attached to the existing Mill Creek subdivision and golf course.  The development required a TIA to be 
submitted as well, and a similar network of study intersections include intersections along Stagecoach 
Road.  Trip distribution and assignment was integrated directly from The Preserve’s TIA into this study 
for adjacent developments, and further distribution and assignment was created for the intersections on 
Lebanon Road beyond the Stagecoach Road intersection, using similar ratios as all other TIA studies for 
this area. 
 
 
Trip Generation 
 
The site generation potential of the proposed development was computed using the 10th Edition of ITE 
Trip Generation Manual.  The trip generation calculated trips based on a total build of two hundred seven 
(207) Single Family Homes (ITE Land Use Code 210).  The developer plans to construct the subdivision in 
two phases over a period of 3 years.  Per NCDOT Congestion Management Standards, and the Rate vs. 
Equation Spreadsheet effective July 1, 2018, the trip generation was calculated using the Equation for the 
adjacent street peak hour data. 
 
The weekday average daily trips generated, as well as AM and PM Peak Hour trips by development phase 
are shown for the proposed land use in Table 3: 

 
SUMMARY OF SITE TRIP GENERATION 

 
 

For residential type land uses, pass-by trips are not utilized, as those type types apply to retail and service 
type land uses.  Similarly, there are no internal capture trips to account for in a residential development.  

 
The total unadjusted volumes were calculated to be 152 trips during the AM peak hour (38 entering and 
114 exiting), and 204 trips during the PM peak hour (129 entering and 75 exiting).  The average weekday 
trips have been calculated to be 2,031 total, with 1,016 entering trips and 1,015 exiting trips. 

 
 
 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    g 

 
Trip Distribution 
 

The distribution ratios developed for the adjacent developments applied 30 % of trips to/from the 
east/north of the site (generally) and 70 % of trips to/from the west/south.  Similar ratios were developed 
for the Tupelo Junction South and additional ratios were included for the Stagecoach Road and North 5th 
Street intersection, as this study area is an expansion from the initial Tupelo Junction TIA. 
 
Based on the information available from the adjacent developments Traffic Impact Analyses, the primary 
trip distributions for the site have been estimated to be: 

 

•    35 % to/from the west on Stagecoach Road 
•    35 % to from the south on Lebanon Road 
•    25 % to/from the east on Lebanon Road 
•      5 % to/from the north on Saddle Club Road 

 

Based upon trip distributions for adjacent developments to the west of Tupelo Junction subdivisions, 
distributions were developed for trips west of Lebanon Road along Stagecoach Road.  A distribution split 
was also created for the intersection of Lebanon Road and Supper Club Road similar to the distribution 
developed for Tupelo Junction South.  All remaining distributions are listed here: 
 

• 5 % to/from the west on E. Brown Street 
• 30 % to/from the south on Supper Club Road 
• 20 % to/from the west on Stagecoach Road 
• 15 % to/from the south and west on North 5th Street 

 
The traffic distributions utilized for dividing traffic in and out of the two access points was determined in 
similar method used for Tupelo Junction South, however with the location of this development being 
further north off Lebanon Road, heavier weighting was given to more traffic using the site access onto 
Saddle Club Road as the main access compared to the split developed for Tupelo Junction South.  The 
split of traffic using the two access points for the Tupelo Junction North has been weighted to 55 % traffic 
using the Lebanon Road access, and 45% using the Saddle Club Road access. 
 
Synchro version 11.1 build 2 was used to analyze all existing and future intersections.   Because overall 
intersection levels of service are not provided for unsignalized intersections, the results were evaluated 
on a per movement basis for unsignalized intersections.  Thus, intersection improvements may need to 
be considered should one or more of the intersection movements experience a failing level of service.  
This method of analysis differs from signalized intersections, where one or more movements at the 
intersection may be deficient, but no intersection improvements would be deemed necessary as long as 
the overall level of service for the intersection does not fall below LOS D, which is the accepted criteria 
for signalized intersections. 
 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    h 

 
 
The results of the study are presented as follows, listed by Intersection: 
 
A.  North 5th Street & Stagecoach Road (SR 1996) (Alamance) 
 

The proposed development, and the adjacent developments under construction, will add new trips to 
this unsignalized intersection, including through movements onto Stagecoach Road, as well as turning 
movements to and from North 5th Street.  The Level of Service for this intersection has diminished to 
Level of Service F under No Build conditions in 2028 for the PM peak hour will remain at A for the AM 
peak hour and B for both peak hours, a result mainly attributed to the buildout of adjacent developments.  
Construction of any turn lanes on any of the approaches did not improve the intersection capacity to be 
better than Level of Service F, and therefore, in maintaining consistency with previous TIA reports, it is 
recommended to continue to monitor this intersection over time for possible signalization.  Since the 
majority of the delay and capacity issues are resulting from these developments, NCDOT practice is to 
monitor situations such as these, since the traffic is project volumes, and not actual.  Once these 
developments are built and actual traffic on the roadways, signal warrant analysis can then be 
determined. 

 
B. Lebanon Road & Supper Club Road 
 

The proposed development, and the adjacent developments under construction, will add new trips to 
this unsignalized intersection, including through movements onto westbound E. Brown Street, as well as 
turning movements to and from Supper Club Road.  The Level of Service for this intersection will remain 
at A for the AM peak hour and B for the PM peak hour.  This will provide adequate capacity in its current 
configuration for several years after the project buildout. 
 
C. Lebanon Road & Stagecoach Road 
 

The proposed development, and the adjacent developments under construction, will add new trips to 
this intersection as turning movements on Stagecoach Road, as well as through movements on Lebanon 
Road.  The Level of Service for this intersection will decrease to C for the AM peak hour, and for the PM 
peak hour will decrease to LOS F.  A right turn lane on Lebanon Road westbound at Stagecoach Road with 
200 of storage will increase the capacity of the intersection and provide Level of Service B in the AM peak, 
and D in the PM peak hour, which is what would be expected in the PM peak under No Build conditions.  
This will provide adequate capacity in its current configuration for several years after the project buildout. 
 
D. Lebanon Road & Broad Oak Drive (Site Drive #1) 
 

The proposed development will add new trips with the buildout of the site to this intersection, with new 
trips entering and exiting at Broad Oak Drive, the main entrance to the subdivision, in addition to the 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    i 

traffic into and out of the site from the build of Tupelo Junction South.  The trips will be added as south 
bound left and right turns from Broad Oak Drive, and left and right turns from Lebanon Road into the site.  
None of these movements experience excessive delays or queues in Buildout analysis.  A left turn lane 
was required as part of Tupelo Junction South and is under construction on Lebanon Road at the site 
driveway with 100 feet of storage, and analysis indicates that this turn lane will also provide adequate 
storage for the added trips resulting from the construction of Tupelo Junction North.  The Level of Service 
for the intersection overall is B, with an average of 13.2 seconds delay between the peak hours, with the 
left turn exiting the site experience slightly longer average delay than the right turns exiting the same site 
driveway. 
 
E. Lebanon Road & Lake Michael Park 
 

The proposed development, and the adjacent developments under construction, will add new trips to 
this intersection with the buildout of the site however the only new trips generated by the buildout of 
the Tupelo Junction North will be through movements on Lebanon Road at this intersection.  All other 
adjacent developments, as well as the proposed site will add through movements only at this intersection 
as well.  The intersection will experience LOS B in the AM peak hour, and LOS C in the PM Peak hour under 
all conditions. 
  
F. Lebanon Road & Saddle Club Road 
 

The proposed development, and the adjacent developments under construction, add new trips to this 
unsignalized intersection with the buildout of Tupelo Junction North, on all approaches and all 
movements.  There are no turn lanes on any of the approaches of the intersection, but existing volumes 
are such that there is adequate capacity to handle the additional trips generated by all of the adjacent 
developments and the proposed site.  The intersection will provide LOS B in the AM peak hour and LOS 
C in the PM peak hour for the future Buildout analysis periods. 
 
G. Lebanon Road & Shallow Spring Drive (Site Drive #2) 
 

The proposed development will add new trips with the buildout of the site to this intersection, with new 
trips entering and exiting at Shallow Spring Drive, the secondary entrance to the subdivision.  These trips 
will be an increase from the trips using this access from the Tupelo Junction South development.  The 
trips will be added as eastbound left and right turns from Shallow Spring Drive, and left and right turns 
from Saddle Club Road into the site.  The intersection will operate at LOS A in both the AM and PM peak 
hour with very little delay, as through traffic on Saddle Club Road remains very low volume. 
 
A summary of the existing, No Build conditions and Build conditions is provided on the next page 
indicating the capability of the roadway network to handle the new trips generated by this site. 

 
 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    j 

 
HCM 6th Edition 

Level of Service Summary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    k 

Conclusions and Recommendations 
 

In summary, the residential development site on the north side of Lebanon Road, west of Saddle Club 
Road in Mebane (Orange County) was analyzed for three (3) separate conditions including 2022 Existing 
Conditions and 2028 Buildout/No Build Conditions.  The trip generation analysis indicates that the 
proposed development of two hundred seven (207) single family homes to be constructed in two (2) 
phases starting in 2026 is expected to generate a total of 2,031 trips per day, with 152 trips during the 
AM peak hour, and 204 trips in the PM peak hour at full buildout.   
 
For the purposes of this study, the total volume added to the adjacent roadway network was not reduced 
for any pass-by trips or Internal Capture trips, since this is a residential subdivision.  The turn movement 
data was collected in September 2022 when traditional and year round schools were in session.  A growth 
rate of 1% from 2022 was applied through the analysis years to buildout in 2028 to estimate the 
background traffic.  New trips anticipated to be generated by nearby adjacent developments either under 
construction or recently approved were added to the background growth to estimate future No Build 
traffic. 
 
All scenarios were configured according to NCDOT Congestion Management requirements for capacity 
analysis.  Roadway improvements proposed by and expected to be constructed by adjacent 
developments have been configured as existing roadway configurations for the No Build and Buildout 
conditions for 2028.  City of Mebane UDO and local Transportation Plans have been applied in 
consideration of the development. 
 
For the Tupelo Junction North subdivision site construction, two (2) existing street accesses will be utilized 
for the site that will provide access through Tupelo Junction South by constructing new streets onto 
existing street stub-outs.  The two existing site accesses on Lebanon Road and Saddle Club Road are 
presently under construction and will be open prior to the start of construction on Tupelo Junction North, 
including a left turn lane on Lebanon Road for eastbound turning traffic at Broad Oak Drive (Site Dr. #1). 
The existing access on Lebanon Road provides one entering lane and two exiting lanes, and the existing 
access on Saddle Club Road will provide one entering and one exiting lane.  All streets in Tupelo Junction 
North will connect to the existing street stubouts in Tupelo Junction South to provide access to Lebanon 
Road and Saddle Club Road. 
 
Summit Design & Engineering developed the existing traffic count information, background growth and 
adjacent development trips throughout the years up through and including the buildout year in 2028.  As 
part of the study Summit also calculated the trip generation for the site development and analyzed the 
traffic impacts to formulate the recommendations in this study.  Discussions with NCDOT Division 7 staff 
as well as City of Mebane staff were held to determine the complete scope of the report. 
 
 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    l 

The existing roadway network demonstrates the ability to handle the added site trips to the network with 
some minimal improvements.  The existing and Future No Build analysis Level of Service indicate some 
delay issues at the Lebanon Road & Stagecoach Road intersection. Most notably in the PM peak hour that 
create Level of Service F.  A right turn lane on Lebanon Road is recommended to reduce the delay and 
congestion, and analysis indicates the proposed turn lane would improve the Level of Service to No Build 
2028 level.     
 
The Future Buildout analysis Level of Service indicates adequate roadway capacity is achievable under 
existing conditions, the addition of a proposed left turn lane on Stagecoach Road at North 9th Street, to 
be constructed by 2028 by an adjacent development, and a recommended right turn lane on Lebanon 
Road at Stagecoach Road.  
 
A summary of the results for the study intersections are as follows: 
 

North 5th Street  & Stagecoach Road 
Analysis of the existing approaches during build conditions indicate that the intersection movements will 
operate at Level of Service F, (the NB stopped approach) even under No Build conditions.  This is mainly 
attributed to the construction of nearby/adjacent developments that have been approved or soon to be 
approved.  Analysis indicated no roadway improvements feasible within current Right-of-Way will 
provide better Level of Service, and in accordance with previous traffic studies, this intersection should 
be considered for signalization if and when actual traffic volumes meet signal warrants.  There will be 
adequate capacity available to handle additional traffic for the proposed site, if the intersection were 
signalized. 
 

Continue to monitor traffic volumes at this intersection as adjacent and nearby developments are  
constructed, to verify meeting signal warrants. 

 
Lebanon Road  & Supper Club Road 
Analysis of the existing approaches during build conditions indicate that the intersection movements will 
operate at acceptable levels of service.  There is adequate capacity available to handle additional traffic 
for the proposed site, the adjacent developments under construction and annual growth. 
 

No improvements are recommended for this intersection. 

Lebanon Road & Stagecoach Road 
The existing configuration shows increases in delay for both peak hours for No Build and buildout 
conditions.  The PM peak hour delays increase on Stagecoach Road to Level of Service F, however the 
addition of a turn lane on Lebanon for westbound traffic will increase intersection capacity and improve 
the Level of Service to D, which would provide the same capacity under 2028 No Build conditions.   
 

Construct a right turn lane on Lebanon Road westbound at Stagecoach Road, with 200 feet of  
storage and appropriate taper.  



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    m 

Lebanon Road & Broad Oak Drive (Site Drive #1) 
The construction of the development will generate additional trips at this intersection on Lebanon Road, 
which also serves as the access point into Tupelo Junction South.  A new left turn lane into the site from 
Lebanon Road is under construction.  All of the delay associated with the access drive is for traffic exiting 
the site (stop control), with minimal queuing in the left turn lane on Lebanon Road.  There is adequate 
capacity available on Lebanon Road to handle additional traffic for the adjacent developments, the 
proposed site, as well as annual growth.  The left turn lane under construction also has the capacity and 
storage to accommodate the additional trips generated from Tupelo Junction North. 
 

No improvements are recommended for this intersection. 
 

Lebanon Road & Lake Michael Park 
 

Analysis of the existing approaches during build conditions indicate that the intersection movements will 
operate at acceptable levels of service.  There is adequate capacity available to handle additional traffic 
for the proposed site, the adjacent developments under construction and annual growth. 
 

No improvements are recommended for this intersection. 
 
Lebanon Road & Saddle Club Road 
Analysis of the existing approaches during build conditions indicate that the intersection movements  
will operate at acceptable levels of service.  There is adequate capacity available to handle additional 
traffic for the proposed site, the adjacent developments under construction and annual growth. 
 

No improvements are recommended for this intersection. 
 
Saddle Club Road & Shallow Spring Drive (Site Drive #2) 
The construction of the development will generate additional trips at this intersection on  Saddle Club 
Road, which also provides access into Tupelo Junction South subdivision.  The access will provide a single 
entrance and exit for the combined developments.  There is adequate capacity available to handle 
additional traffic for Tupelo Junction North as well as new trips generated by adjacent or nearby 
developments that will be constructed by 2028, as well as annual growth. 
 

No improvements are recommended for this intersection. 
 

All public streets shall be constructed to City of Mebane standards and specifications and per the City’s 
Unified Development Ordinance.  Any NCDOT requirements related to NCDOT maintained roadways will 
be designed to NCDOT standards and specifications.  In conclusion, this study has reviewed the impacts 
of both background traffic conditions and the proposed traffic to be generated by the site as well as the 
adjacent developments presently under construction, studied the impacts to the roadway network, and 
has determined that there will be adequate capacity for future traffic. 



  

  
Tupelo Junction North         Mebane, NC 
Traffic Impact Analysis    n 

PROPOSED TRAFFIC OPERATIONS (2028) 

 



 

 

September 30, 2022 

 

TO:  Ashley Ownbey 

Interim Development Director – City of Mebane 

E: aownbey@cityofmebane.com 

 
 

FROM: Craig J. Hyman, PE 

   Ramey Kemp Associates 

   E: chyman@rameykemp.com 

 

SUBJECT: Tupelo Junction North TIA Review Comments 

 

Ms. Ownbey: 

 

Ramey Kemp Associates (RKA) has reviewed the subject TIA and issues the following comments. 

 

Study Summary 

 

The proposed site is an expansion of the residential Tupelo Junction South development located north of Lebanon 

Road in Mebane, North Carolina. It consists of 207 single family units and will have access via existing roadways 

in Tupelo Junction South – Shallow Springs Drive and Broad Oak Drive. The development is expected to be built 

in two phases over three years, beginning in 2026. Construction on the proposed development is anticipated to 

begin after the completion of the Tupelo Junction South development. 

 

The development is anticipated to generate approximately 2,030 daily trips during a typical weekday - with 152 

trips occurring during the morning (AM) peak hour and 204 trips occurring during the afternoon (PM) peak hour. 

Analysis was performed for three (3) scenarios: 2022 Existing Conditions, 2028 Future No Build Conditions, and 

2028 Future Build Conditions. Analysis results indicate a degradation of minor approach levels of service for the 

following intersections due to adjacent development and/or site traffic: 

1. Stagecoach Road at N 5th Street 

2. Stagecoach Road at Lebanon Road   

 

The following comments relate to deviations from various NCDOT and/or City analysis guidelines. A revised 

TIA based on these comments is requested. 

 

General 

1. Some figures show the intersection of Stagecoach Road and 9th Street as well as Lebanon Road and 

Ashland Dr / Lake Michael Way and some figures do not. These intersections are also included in the 

Synchro analysis but LOS results are not reported for them. Please clarify the intent of including these 

intersections in some of the material and either include in all figures and reporting or remove from the 

study. 

 

 

mailto:aownbey@cityofmebane.com


Tupelo North TIA Review Comments | 2 
 

 

TIA Report  

1. Please verify if the 2028 horizon year is appropriate based on whether Tupelo North will be completed by 

then.  

2. Figures 9A and 9B appear to be the same turn lane warrant chart. Please revise as appropriate. 

 

3. Section V. Mitigation A. North 5th Street & Stagecoach Road (Alamance) on page 39 of the report states 

“The level of service for this intersection has diminished to level of service F under No Build conditions 

in 2028 for the PM peak hour will remain at A for the AM peak hour and B for both peak hours, a result 

mainly attributed to the buildout of adjacent developments.” The LOS for the minor approach of this 

intersection under existing conditions is LOS B (AM) and LOS C (PM). The minor approach operates at 

LOS F under all over analysis scenarios. Please revise this statement or clarify the intent if referring to 

something else. 

 

4. Section V. Mitigation B. Lebanon Road & Supper Club Road on page 39 of the report states “This will 

provide adequate capacity in its current configuration for several years after the project buildout.” This is 

not a known fact as only the build-out year of the proposed development was analyzed. The intersection 

configuration will accommodate traffic volumes studied in this report for the identified adjacent 

developments and subject development.  

 

5. Section V. Mitigation C. Lebanon Road & Stagecoach Road on page 39 of the report states “This will 

provide adequate capacity in its current configuration for several years after the project buildout.” This is 

not a known fact as only the build-out year of the proposed development was analyzed. The intersection 

configuration will accommodate traffic volumes studied in this report for the identified adjacent 

developments and subject development.  
 

Synchro Analysis 

1. 2028 Buildout AM Peak hour file: SB thru volumes on Saddle Club Road are lower than shown in Figure 

8 in the report. The largest difference in volume is 8 vehicles at Saddle Club Trails #1. This is not expected 

to significantly impact the analysis results. 

2. 2028 Buildout PM Peak hour file: 

a. EB/WB thru movements on Stagecoach Road at Stagecoach Corner do not match those in Figure 

8. The difference is small and not expected to impact the analysis results. 

b. SB thru volumes on Saddle Club Road are lower than shown in Figure 8 in the report, as well as 

the NB thru volume on Saddle Club Road at Saddle Club Trails #2. However, the differences are 

small and not expected to significantly impact the analysis results. 


	01 October 2022 Planning Board Agenda
	02 August 2022 PB Minutes
	03 Tupelo North Rezoning Request
	00 Summary Sheet - Conditional Rezoning - Tupelo North
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	0 Tupelo North Rezoning Application
	02 Tupelo North Zoning Map
	03 Tupelo North Site Plan 2022-09-27r
	04 Project Report - Tupelo North
	Project name & applicant Page 1
	Zoning Report Page 2
	Land Use Report page 4
	Utilities Report page 7
	Staff ZONING REQUEST Recommendation page 8
	ZONING REPORT
	LAND USE REPORT
	UTILITIES REPORT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION

	05 Tupelo Junction - Letter of approval for preliminary water and sewer 10-4-2022
	06 Tupelo Junction Site Plan Technical Memo 10-4-2022
	07 Tupelo Junction North TIA document 9-20-22 - Executive Summary
	07aTupelo North TIA Review Comments_cjh




